
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), D'Agorne, Firth, Funnell, 

Horton, Hudson, Hyman, Jamieson-Ball, Moore, Morley, 
Pierce, Potter (Vice-Chair), Reid, Simpson-Laing, 
B Watson and Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 20 May 2010 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 
 

There are no site visits scheduled for this meeting. 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5.00pm on Wednesday 19 May 2010. Members of 
the public can speak on specific planning applications or on other 
agenda items or matters within the remit of the committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 
 

3. Plans List   
 

This item invites Members to determine the following planning 
application: 
 



 
a) Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane and 

Low Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

Reserved matters application for the construction of the western 
landscape vista [Heslington Ward]. 
 

4. Any other business, which the Chair considers urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



 

Application Reference Number: 10/00436/REMM  Item No:  3a 
Page 1 of 5 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Heslington 
Date: 20 May 2010 Parish: Heslington Parish Council 
 
Reference: 10/00436/REMM 
Application at: Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane And 

Low Lane  A64 Trunk Road And Hull Road York   
For: Reserved matters application for construction of the Western 

Landscape Vista 
By: University Of York 
Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application (13w) 
Target Date: 8 June 2010 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0 PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The site of the outline consent for the new University campus comprises 116ha 
of farmland between Field Lane/Hull Road and Low Lane.  65ha of the site is 
allocated for development.  Most of the remainder will be landscaped.   
 
1.2 This is a reserved matters application to landscape 1.37ha of the campus site  
immediately to the west of Cluster 1.  It would create the Western Vista, i.e. the 
second of three landscaped wedges that will subdivide the built areas of the new 
campus.  Planning permission for the first of the wedges, the Central Landscape 
Vista, was granted in August 2009 (09/01254/REM). The third wedge will be part of a 
later phase of development. 
 
1.3 The works to the Western Vista will provide informal green space, primarily to 
create a buffer between Cluster 1 and future development to the west (Cluster 3).  
The works will mainly comprise: meandering footpaths between the landscape buffer 
zone to the north and the movement spine to the south; earth mounding to screen 
the Theatre, Film and Television Ancillaries Building; tree planting along the eastern 
and western edges; grassed areas for games, picnics, open study, etc; green buffers 
to increase the ecological value of the landscape; drainage swales allowing surface 
water to flow into the main lake; and a section of the pedestrian ribbon that runs 
west-east.  The works will include some minor cut-and-fill re-profiling of the land.  
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams  East Area (1) 0003 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 

Agenda Item 3aPage 3



 

Application Reference Number: 10/00436/REMM  Item No: 3a  
Page 2 of 5 

CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CGP15A 
Development and Flood Risk 
  
CYNE7 
Habitat protection and creation 
  
CYED9 
University of York New Campus 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Internal 
Environment, Conservation, Sustainable Development (Landscape) - No objections. 
The scheme adheres to the principles of the landscape master plan and design 
guidelines. A detailed planting plan should be secured as a condition.  In order to 
avoid ambiguity with the Environmental Site Management Plan (ESMP) habitat 
creation/management proposals should be made a condition of approval.  Whilst 
there is ample space for sitting, on the ground provision of some seating facilities 
would be appropriate. I would hope that lighting is not required. If it is, the locations 
and specification would need to be approved. 
 
Environment, Conservation, Sustainable Development (Countryside) - No objections.  
The landscaping proposed is suitable and should provide a good range of habitats 
including an important commuting link through the new campus. More details of the 
proposals are required, including of any lighting.  It is important that any light spillage 
is minimised to reduce any impact, and that no potential bat roost sites are directly 
illuminated. 
 
Environment Protection Unit - No objections subject to the submitted Construction 
Environmental Management Plan being adhered to at all times and other relevant 
conditions of the outline consent being complied with. 
 
Structures and Drainage - The development is in low risk Flood Zone 1 and should 
not suffer from river flooding.  No objections. 
 
3.2  External  
Heslington Forum including Heslington Parish Council - The forum meetings of 10 
December 2007 and 4 February 2008 considered the general design of the vista 
within the context of the draft design brief and landscape brief for the campus.  On 
23 March 2010 forum members were sent details of the proposals.  No comments on 
the current proposals have been made by Heslington Parish Council or by any other 
member organisation of the forum. 
 
York Natural Environment Panel - No response. 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 10/00436/REMM  Item No: 3a  
Page 3 of 5 

Public Consultation - Consultation measures included a site notice and an 
advertisement in the local press.  Copies of the application were available for 
inspection at St Leonard's Place and the University.  The consultation period expired 
on 15 April 2010.  No objections have been received.   
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues:- 

• Principle of the use 
• Landscape;  
• Drainage; 
• Ecology and bio-diversity; 
• Movement and access. 

  
POLICY CONTEXT 
4.2      Local plan policy GP1 - Development proposals will be expected to respect or 
enhance the local environment and be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design 
that is compatible with neighbouring buildings, spaces and vegetation.  
 
4.3      Policy GP4a  - Proposals for all development should have regard to the 
principles of sustainable development.   
 
4.4      GP9 - Where appropriate, development proposals should incorporate a 
suitable landscaping scheme that is an integral part of the proposals; includes an 
appropriate range of species, reflects the character of the area; enhances the 
attractiveness of key transport corridors; and includes a planting specification where 
appropriate. 
 
4.5      GP15a - Developers should ensure that the site can be developed, serviced 
and occupied safely and that discharges from new development should not exceed 
the capacity of existing/proposed sewers and watercourses.  
 
4.6      NE7 - Development proposals should retain and, where possible, enhance 
important natural habitats. 
 
4.7      ED9 - The scale, layout and design of the new campus at Heslington East 
should have regard to, inter alia, a comprehensive landscape scheme including 
publicly accessible public open space and a comprehensive network of 
pedestrian/cycle routes between campuses. 
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE USE 
4.8      The principle of the use of the site as part of a new campus was accepted 
when the Secretary of State granted outline consent in 2007.  Moreover, the 
proposal accords with local plan policy ED9 for the development of the campus, the 
adopted development brief for site, the land use plan C(i) approved as part of the 
outline consent and the draft masterplan for the campus.  The principle of the 
proposed use is therefore acceptable.  However, as this is a reserved matters 
application the proposals are required to include details of the works to the council's 
satisfaction. 
 
 

Page 5



 

Application Reference Number: 10/00436/REMM  Item No: 3a  
Page 4 of 5 

LANDSCAPE  
4.9 The campus is being developed within a high quality landscape that includes 
buffer zones between the development and the residential communities of 
Heslington and Badger Hill.  The buffer zones are complemented by three 'green 
wedges' that run through the areas of built development, integrating them into the 
broader landscape setting.  The Western Vista is one of these wedges. It will provide 
effective separation between Cluster 1 and Cluster 3 whilst linking the peripheral 
landscaping to the north with the lake area to the south.  The landscape design 
provides fluid spaces and routes, subtle variations in habitat/planting types, gentle 
contouring and natural orientation, all to good effect and practical function.  
 
4.10 Tree species will mainly comprise a mixture of Silver Birch, Alder, Cherry and 
Rowan.  In addition the TFTV Ancillaries Building will be screened by Holm Oak and 
Scots Pine. Amenity grassland is proposed within three central open spaces which 
will be for recreational use, as well as for the mown grassland paths which link these 
spaces and the vista with the rest of the campus.  The planting schedule is generally 
satisfactory nevertheless a detailed planting plan will be needed.  This can be 
secured by a condition.  
 
DRAINAGE 
4.11 A swale will run the length of the Western Vista, from the northern service 
road in the north to the movement spine in the south.  The swale will collect surface 
water and deposit it in the main lake via a culvert under the movement spine.  The 
water will be stored in the lake and released at agricultural rates into local 
watercourses.  These principles were accepted by the inspector at the public inquiry.  
Details of the discharge arrangements were agreed by the Planning Committee on 
29 April 2010.  
 
ECOLOGY AND BIO-DIVERSITY 
4.12 The landscaping is expected to provide a good range of habitats including 
species-rich grassland and wooded areas. This habitat mosaic will provide good 
foraging habitat for a range of species, as well as providing an important commuting 
link throughout the new campus, down towards the lake to the south and out to the 
wider countryside. Swathes of species-rich neutral wildflower grassland are 
proposed, including species such as knapweed, birds foot trefoil, crested dogstail, 
and red fescue. This long grassland will extend across much of the site.  The 
drainage swale will include a mix of species more tolerant to wetter conditions. More 
details are required of the planting proposals and the landscape management 
regime to ensure that the proposed habitat types will be established and will flourish.  
 
4.13 Any artificial lighting could have an impact on the wildlife that may use the 
site, and on its use as a wildlife corridor. However, no such lighting is proposed as 
part of the application.  If lighting were to be included approval of the details would 
be required under Condition 25 of the outline consent.  
 
MOVEMENT AND ACCESS 
4.14 The east-west pedestrian/cycle ribbon has already been approved and is in 
place.  It complies with the outline consent for the campus, the development brief for 
the site and the landscape masterplan.  The north-south meandering paths will 
provide recreational pedestrian access into the site for students and the general 
public.  The Western Vista will have no vehicular access. 

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 10/00436/REMM  Item No: 3a  
Page 5 of 5 

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The proposal is a fundamental component of the landscape setting of the new 
campus.  It conforms with policies of the draft local plan particularly ED9 (New 
campus at Heslington East).  The proposal also conforms with the outline consent for 
the campus, the approved development brief and the landscape masterplan. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the approved plans numbered (9-) L028/B,  (9-) L029/C,  (9-) L030/B,  (9-) 
L031/C,  (9-) L032/B,  C-WV-GA-202T1, C-WV-SD-204T1, C-WV-SD-205T1, C-WV-
GA-206T2 and C-WV-SD-208T1. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2  Prior to development commencing, a schedule containing details of the 
implementation and management of topsoil and growing media, seeding and 
external planting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The implementation of the above items shall be undertaken in accordance 
with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To avoid ambiguity and to ensure that the proposed habitat types can be 
achieved through suitable implementation and management.  
 
 3  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs.  This scheme 
shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 

 1. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to respect for the environment, design, 
landscaping, bio-diversity and drainage.  As such the proposal complies with policies 
GP1, GP9, NE7, GP15a and ED9  of the City of York Development Control Local 
Plan. 
 

Contact details: 
Author: Kevin O'Connell Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 552830 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



D
AT

E

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

o.

c 
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fri

ng
es

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

Pr
od

uc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

19
93

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 1
:1

25
0 

m
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ffi
ce

O
rig

in
at

in
g 

G
ro

up
:

SC
AL

E:
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

9,
St

.L
eo

na
rd

s 
Pl

ac
e,

Yo
rk

,Y
O

1 
2E

T

Pr
oj

ec
t

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

 L
A 

10
00

 2
08

18

Te
le

ph
on

e:
 0

19
04

 5
51

55
0

P
S

L
11

/5
/2

01
0

H
EC

W
LV

H
ES

LI
N

G
TO

N
 E

AS
T 

C
AM

PU
S 

- W
ES

TE
R

N
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
VI

ST
A

N
TS

N S

E
W

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3a Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane and Low Lane, A64 Trunk Road and Hull Road, York
	HECWLV


